
Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 1

The regular meeting of the Township Council of the Township of Lower, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey
was held on September 8, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. in the meeting room of the Township Hall, 2600 Bayshore Road, Villas,
New Jersey.

The Clerk announced that the meeting was being held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act and that
adequate notice of the meeting had been provided according to law.

The following members of Council were present for roll call taken by the Clerk:

Councilmember Thomas Conrad
Councilmember Wayne Mazurek
Councilmember Glenn Douglass

Deputy Mayor Kevin Lare
Mayor Michael Beck

Also present: Anthony Monzo, Solicitor, Kathleen McPherson, Manager and Asst. Clerk Horwath

WORK SESSION

Presentation - Office of Emergency Management Hurricane Preparedness
Mayor Beck said Emergency Management was here for a presentation on hurricane preparedness and he turned the
meeting over to Art Treon.
Mr. Treon had a slide show to present and he mentioned Chief Donohue would help with the presentation.  He said
the Mayor, Manager, Emergency Management, the Police, the three Fire Departments and the Rescue Squad had
put a lot of effort in preparedness for what almost occurred.   He said Cape May County was the 6th most difficult
place in the United States.  He added we were above the Outer Banks in North Carolina they could evacuate faster
that we could.  He said we had a geographical problem with evacuation.
Mr. Treon said the national weather had accepted the fact a warning for Cape May County didn �t work, we needed to
be in with Atlantic and Cumberland Counties to be more effective.  He said they had improved to a new status of  a
36-hour warning for hurricanes in Cape May, Atlantic and Cumberland Counties.  The Township Officials had
elected to get involved with the Cape May County Pre-Disaster Hazard Mitigation Plan which Gary Douglass had
been very instrumental in and working with a consultant to improve some of the infrastructure in the Township
through grants or bonds. 
Mr. Treon said it was hurricane season now but, the problem time for us was mid-August through mid-October.  He
went over the figures of the population in the area and those with special needs who would need help to get out and
when the tourist were here the figure rose to 681,200. 
Mr. Treon went over the storm surges and the height the waves would be if a direct hurricane were to occur.  He said
there were 67 buildings designated as shelters in the County but, there were no shelters for a direct hit from a
hurricane.  He said that was because the shelters were in flood plains.  He said there were shelters of last resort
where you would be placed on a bus and taken to Gloucester, Camden or Mercer Counties.  
Mr. Treon turned the meeting over to Chief Donohue and he spoke about the evacuation routes.
Chief Donohue mentioned the winter storms that occurred last year and said  3 shelters opened at one time.  He
said after that they formed an Emergency Management Committee consisting of the Manager, Mayor, Police



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 2

Personnel, all three Fire Chiefs, OEM Personnel, Gary Douglass of DPW and the MUA.  He said at the time the
committee was formed they were in a blizzard mode but also discussed hurricanes and evacuation.  He said the
Prosecutors Office was working with the NJ State Police on the reverse lane strategy for the Garden State Parkway. 
He said it was only in the event of a direct hit and the order had to come from the Governor �s Office and had to come
36 hours out.  
Chief Donohue said it would take at least 24 hours to evacuate Cape May County with the reverse lane strategy.  He
said you should have a plan for your family, an emergency kit and a place to go outside of Cape May County
preferably friends or family.   He said they were discussing if it were a direct hit, the County Airport would be high
and dry even in a category 4.  He said after the storm the airport would be a big location for handing out supplies. 
He said people may no be able to get back into the Township for a week at least after a major storm.
Chief Donohue said everything they had talked about was to get people prepared in case a direct hit from a
hurricane did occur.   
Mr. Treon said they didn �t want anyone left behind and what people needed to do was have a survival kit, make a
plan and stay informed.  He named some of the items that should be in the survival kit.   
Mayor Beck open the meeting for public comment.
A resident asked if there was any verification that the Cape May Lewis Ferry could be used to evacuate.
Mr. Treon said there was an article about that, however, the problem was you had to evacuate three days prior and
when you got to Wilmington there were no plans beyond that  you had to make provisions for yourself.
Mayor Beck said  remember to check on your neighbors. 
Sue Bailey asked if evacuation was mandatory and what were the repercussions for those who didn �t evacuate.
Mr. Treon said you were on your own, he was told if people didn �t want to go don �t waste your time help those who
wanted to leave.
Janet Pitts asked what was the realistic likelihood for them to be able to predict where it would hit.
Mr. Treon said the weather channels showed where the hurricane was going but one.

Discussion - Commercial Trash Collection Fees
Mayor Beck said Council had received a memo from Public Work and he asked Council if they had any thoughts on
it.  He said Gary Douglass did an estimate on the tipping fees.  He said the cost was about $130,000.00 and the
estimated revenue generated would be about $165,000.00 if they went with the proposal.  He said the tipping fees
were just part of the cost there was equipment, insurance and manpower so it was close to a wash when all the cost
factors were added.  
Mayor Beck said there were some questions as to why they were in that business at all.  He said they had done
commercial pick up as long as he could remember.  He said they were in a precarious position with the budget and if
they didn �t generate revenue and pass on some of the cost it could cost some manpower.  He said they could move
ahead, they could adjust it or Council could say they wanted to end commercial pick up all together.
Councilmember Conrad asked if a business only had one or two trash cans and paid taxes why would they charge
them and for a residential property it was all part of the property taxes.  He said it would take some time to figure it
out.  
Mayor Beck said the Township was paying tipping fees.
Councilmember Conrad said they were paying that for residential and the business owner paid for a mercantile
license, property tax and now they had to pay for trash.
Councilmember Douglass said he had calls  regarding the commercial pick up.  He said there was discussion if the
Township did charge it would be less than the commercial haulers.  He said the issue was it was a once a week pick
up and most businesses needed more than that.  He said most businesses were paying large taxes.  He said he
spoke to some campgrounds, marinas and small businesses in Ward 3 and some were saying maybe the Township
should get out of commercial pick up.  He wasn �t sure they could move forward just yet and he would like to hear
what the public had to say.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 3

Deputy Mayor Lare felt they should be looking at the proposal in totality.  He said they would be hitting them with the
increase in mercantile fees and now possibly with trash.  He felt they were moving to fast and he didn �t understand
what the rush was.   He said how were they policing commercial trash if someone refused it.
Manager McPherson said if they wanted the pick up they would pay and if not they wouldn �t collect it.
Deputy Mayor Lare said maybe they should have more input from the ones being impacted which was the business
owners.  He again said he didn �t see the rush since the mercantile licenses weren �t due until July.
Manager McPherson said they were working on the budget now and needed to know if they could anticipate it.
Deputy Mayor Lare said they needed to slow down and decide what they were going to do with the trash before they
raised the mercantile fees.
Mayor Beck asked how many towns had free commercial trash pick up.
Gary Douglass said there were 4 other towns that offered a similar service.
Mayor Beck said it wasn �t something the Township wanted to do.  He said there was a gigantic shortfall and that
would translate into people being laid off.  He said taxes could only be raised so much.  He said nobody wanted to
do this but felt they had to.  He said he had listened to the arguments and they were good, but they may not be good
enough in this budget year.  
Councilmember Mazurek wanted to ask Gary Douglass a question.  He said it appeared they had three options for
trash pick up -  one option was to leave it the way it was and it would cost $130,000 in tipping fees not counting work
force.  He said option two was to do away with picking up commercial trash all together, and option three would be to
charge the suggested fees for commercial trash.  He said the fees that would be taken in by charging would be
$165,768 and pay out $130,894  and the net gain would be $34,874.00.
Gary Douglass said yes, but actually it would be an increase of $165,000 that they didn �t have now.
Councilmember Mazurek said they would have to pay out the $130,000 tipping fee.
Gary Douglass said they were doing that now.
Mayor Beck said currently they were paying for equipment, insurance and manpower.
Councilmember Mauzrek said what he was getting at was what was the best option for the Township to raise money.
Gary Douglass said to charge and that would raise money.
Mayor Beck said if no one was picking up commercial trash that made them available for other duties and save on
equipment costs.  He didn �t feel like leaving things they way they were as an option.  He said at this point he felt the
Township would be cheaper as opposed to a commercial hauler.  He said maybe charge now and notify people that
it would end in two years.  He said it would give the business people time to prepare for it.  He said with the 2% CAP
they could only raise taxes so much.  He said they were short $900,000 to 1 million short.  He said the workforce
had been reduced 10%. 
Councilmember Conrad said he felt it had to be looked at as a whole and it wasn �t something they could decide that
night.  He said they needed a little more information and time.
Councilmember Douglass said it was a bad time with the economy and to be raising fees.  He said the businesses
were trying to hold on and not raise fees and some have lowered fees.
Gary Douglass said when it came to leaving it the way it was and cutting manpower they would be forced to cut a
service.  He came up with the proposal and it was an ordinance since 1985 but never enacted and it was a happy
medium.  
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for public comment.
Frank Serraco of East Tampa Ave., he said to look at things realistically.  He gave a scenario of cost passed on by a
wholesaler on down and the bottom line was it would be passed on to the consumer.  
Ed Butler of Delaware Bay Drive said for three meetings they had listened to this.  He said they had department
heads and Gary had gone through the whole thing and given his input and yet Council went in all different directions. 
He said Council didn �t deal with it on a daily basis.  He said they asked for his input and didn �t take his advice.
Ken Gomez of Beachcomber Campground said he appreciated what Council was doing and it was a good thing to a
certain extent.  He said economically it was a tough world out there and any cost increases they received they were



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 4

passed on to the consumer.  He said his workforce was 10% less than two years ago and why, because people
weren �t coming back like they used to.  He said the higher the fees and cost were the people were not likely to come
back.  He said as far as he knew he paid the same assessed rate as residential yet they want to pick up for
residential and cut commercial it didn �t seem a fair way to do it.
Richard Ewing of the Jersey Cape Motel asked if it was optional to have trash pick up.
Mayor Beck said it was optional if they wanted to contract out their trash pick up.
Johnny Walker of 116 W. Pacific Ave. said he was representing himself as a homeowner and Garden State Trash
and Recycling.  He said there were two issues as a homeowner and in the trash business for 35 years he said there
were only a few cities and towns that picked up commercial trash.  He said tipping fees were disposal fees and if
they cut out commercial pick up they would save $130,000.00, but more importantly they would save on the
maintenance of the trucks, liability, tires and fuel when added up over a year it would be a substantial savings.  That
was his view as a taxpayer and why should he pay for their trash pick up.  The second issue was roll-off containers
would be charged $125.00 for hauling.  He said they were stepping on private trash haulers toes because they
couldn �t compete with that and the Township was stealing their business.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said they were picking them up for free.
Mayor Beck said maybe to have some kind of sunset provision and charge for pick up and slowly get out of it.
Ernie Utsch said New Jersey was ranked 50th in the nation as being a business friendly state, but he said
everywhere else was better.  He said they couldn �t continue to tax and spend the way things were going.  He said it
wasn �t going to be easy for Council and they had to look at the cost of running the Township.  He said he had used a
private trash hauler since the 1960's and it wasn �t a burden to him.
Mayor Beck closed the public portion and asked Council for comments and if they wanted to move forward with it.
Councilmember Conrad said to wait until the next meeting.  
Councilmember Mazurek said they heard from some businesses and the Township was running one of the biggest
businesses here.  He said he disagreed with Mr. Utsch and they did have a payroll to meet every month.  He said
the problem was the Township was short one million dollars.  He said he was almost in favor now to do away with
the commercial trash pickup.  He said if the Township was looking for the biggest bang for their buck, doing away
with commercial pickup was the way to go.
Gary Douglass said he didn �t want anyone to think that doing away with commercial trash was a manpower savings. 
He said he didn �t have a route that just picked up commercial trash.
Mayor Beck asked the Solicitor if they could do an ordinance that related the Township would pick up the trash for a
year and the business owners would have to make provisions for the following year.
Solicitor Monzo said yes it could be done with a sunset provision.
Councilmember Douglass said the proposal would take effect January 1st.  
Deputy Mayor Lare asked if the residential route picked up commercial trash.  
Gary Douglass said yes the trucks were equipped with a wench and they backed up to the dumpster and picked it
up.
Mayor Beck said his suggestion was have the Solicitor draw up an ordinance that put the fees in affect next year
with a sunset provision at the end of the year that stated they would be out of the commercial trash and it gave
business owners time to make different arrangements for the following year.  He asked Council if they were on board
with it.
Deputy Mayor Lare said if they were going to do away with commercial trash pick up on January 1st they should
campaign now to inform the businesses.  He would support that with the caveat that their mercantile license fees
were not increased.  He said the businesses were being hit twice.  
Councilmember Conrad said he agreed with Deputy Mayor Lare on that.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said he agreed with increasing the construction fees and planning.  He was talking about the
mercantile fees, campgrounds, boat slips etc.  
A brief discussion ensued about the amounts that would be raised by increases and what Deputy Mayor Lare



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 5

wanted taken out of the ordinance.
Mayor Beck said if they eliminated those fees they would loose about $60,000 to $70,000 in revenue.  
Deputy Mayor Lare said they were saving $130,000 in tipping fees.
Mayor Beck said they were at half of what they started with.  He said it wasn �t about money, it was about people and
at the end of the road there were people who would get pink slips.  He said the work force had been reduced over
10%.  He said their backs were against the wall and their million dollar hole started after a tax increase.
Councilmember Conrad reviewed the list of increases as to what to leave in and what to take out.   He said he
wasn �t in favor of the ordinance in the first place.  
Councilmember Mazurek felt they should go along with the adjusted fee schedule.
Mayor Beck reviewed the fees and the last increases they had.  He said he was in agreement with the fees.  
Councilmember Douglass said he agreed with Councilmember Conrad he didn �t have a problem with the trash and
giving them time.  He felt the fees needed to be looked at again.  
Mayor Beck asked Deputy Mayor Lare if he could support the commercial trash and give them a year to get a private
hauler.
Deputy Mayor Lare said he couldn �t support it if they were going to come back and raise their mercantile license fee.
Mayor Beck said the numbers were needed for the budget and if they were going to have layoffs.
Deputy Mayor Lare said Mayor Beck kept throwing layoffs out there and asked had they approached the unions
about taking zero.  He said before they started using scare tactics get their duck in a row and know what they had.  
Mayor Beck said it was the third meeting and they had been back and forth on it.  He said a decision needed to be
made if they were going to move ahead with it.  He said they needed to know for budget purposes.
Councilmember Douglass said they needed to talk with the unions because they needed their assistance with this. 
He said other towns were doing different programs to avoid layoffs.  He said there were two sides to the story,  the
community and the staff and it needed to be leveled out.
A discussion ensued about the fee increases among Council.
Deputy Mayor Lare would communicate his proposal through an email to the Manager and she could circulate to
Council.
Mayor Beck said he didn �t think it could be done through email.
Solicitor Monzo said if it was brought to the next meeting it would be fine.
Manager McPherson said for all of Council to send her their proposal and she would have something for the next
meeting.

Review of Consent and Regular Agenda Items
Councilmember Conrad said to move to the regular agenda Resolution #2010-233 and Ordinance #2010-10.
Mayor Beck said to table Resolution #2010-234 and Ordinance #2010-10 would be moved off and table.
Solicitor Monzo said the agenda had to be amended.
Mayor Beck said he needed a motion to remove Res. #2010-234 and Ord. #2010-10 off the agenda.
Councilmember Mazurek motioned to remove the resolution and ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Conrad. 
The resolution and ordinance were removed by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �,
Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �, Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck,  �yes �.

Public Questions on Consent Agenda and/or Regular Agenda Items
Susan Bailey Oak Lane in Erma, said Council  mentioned about doing away with the trash.   She said they weren �t
giving them an option to stay with the Township at a cheaper rate.  She said Council was forcing the business owner
to pay a higher rate.
Joe Winters, Florida Avenue asked if Resolution #2010-233 was still on.
The Clerk said it was moved to the regular agenda.
Ed Butler asked for an explanation of a couple resolutions.
Manager McPherson explained what the resolutions were for.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 6

Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes August 16, 2010
Res. #2010-221, Payment of Vouchers, $1,614.740.87
Res. #2010-222, Grant Application DEDR (Drunk Driving Enforcement Fund, $12,470.32)
Res. #2010-223, Resolution to Accept Glenwood  Avenue as Suitably Improved for Development

Res. #2010-224, A Resolution Requesting Release of Demolition Bond for Block 116, Lots 24 & 25,
210 Bay Avenue Villas

Res. #2010-225, A Resolution Requesting Release of Performance Guarantee for Families Matter,
LLC; Block 114, Lots 33 & 34, Escrow #P09-07 � 3

Res. #2010-226, Authorization for Off shore Taxi to Transfer Taxi License From 1999 Ford
Windstar To A 2000 Chrysler 

Res. #2010-227, Authorization for Refund of Taxes (4 paid twice & 1 disabled vet status granted)
Res. #2010-228, Certification of Lot Clearing Charges to the Tax Collector (4 properties)
Res. #2010-229, Resolution Adopting the Land Use Pledge
Res. #2010-230, Resolution Approving Agreement Relating to Encroachment Between the

Township of Lower and 9510 Associates
Res. #2010-231, Approval for Pytrotecnico Fireworks to Load and Unload a Fireworks Barge in

Lower Township (For Ocean City event Oct. 10)
Res. #2010-232, Resolution Authorizing Interlocal Services Agreement Between the Township of

Lower and Lower Township Municipal Utilities Authority (Permits sharing of
various equipment, services, etc.)

Res. #2010-234, Resoluton Approving New Fee Schedule For Recreation Department (Increasing 
various fees associated with sports, cheeleading and the use of  themunicipal 
pool)

Res. #2010-235, Pledge of Municipal Support for New Jersey's Wildlife Action Plan (Component of 
goal to be certified as a Sustainable Jersey town)

Res. #2010-236, Authorization to Cancel Uncashed Checks (9 checks)
Res. #2010-237, Approving Application to Conduct a Flea Market on September 11, 2010 for Cold 

Spring Presbyterian Church
Res. #2010-238, Authorizing a Professional Contract with Blauer Associates ($17,500 for Small 

cities CDBG program)

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember
Conrad.The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, "yes",
Councilmember Mazurek, "yes", Councilmember Douglass, "yes", Deputy Mayor Lare, "yes", Mayor Beck
"yes".

   Regular Agenda
Res. #2010-239, Payment of Voucher $25,300 (CPR Certification and 2010 expenses)
Joe Winters asked about the certifications and did the Township have to pay for it.
Mananger McPherson said when they did CPR training.  She said it was for Township employees.
Councilmember Conrad said the American Heart charges instructors so much per class.
Manager McPherson said there were other expenses in there but the certification was $300.00.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 7

Councilmember Douglass motioned to adopt the consent agenda, seconded by Councilmember Mazurek.
The consent agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, "yes",
Councilmember Mazurek, "yes", Councilmember Douglass, "yes", Deputy Mayor Lare, "yes", Mayor Beck
"yes".

Res. #2010-240, Payment of Voucher $600.00 (Douglass Landscaping Lot Clearing)
Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Conrad. The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, "yes",
Councilmember Mazurek, "yes", Councilmember Douglass, "abstain", Deputy Mayor Lare, "yes", Mayor
Beck "yes".

Ord.  #2010-08, Bond Ordinance Providing for Various Capital Improvements of the Township of
Lower, In The County of Cape May, New Jersey, Appropriating the Aggregate Amount of $970,000
Therefor and Authorizing the Issuance of $905,000 Bonds or Notes of the Township to Finance Part of the
Cost Thereof, was presented for second reading and final adoption.  
The Clerk announced the ordinance was posted and published according to law and copies were available
in the Clerk's Office.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the ordinance.
Janet Pitts 149 Pinetree Drive, realized it was from last December she felt it was like a charge card.  She
said in this economy people in their own home were not making purchases.  She said she realized it was
already committed to.
Mayor Beck said it wasn't purchased but it was committed in a sense they would have the opportunity and
it would still have to come from Council.
Manager McPherson said no, once the bond was passed it didn �t need Councils approval and she pointed
out it wasn't a wish list.  She said some things had a time frame of usefulness and needed to be replaced
and she reviewed the list.
Janet Pitts said some things could be purchased out of OE and go another year with the vehicles.
Manager McPherson said the debt was pretty level, some was dropping off and their obligation wasn �t
increasing.
A brief discussion ensued on what was being purchased and the reasons why.
Mayor Beck closed the public portion.
Councilmember Conrad said he couldn't support putting a new roof on the recreation center without
looking into solar panels and he found out the deadline was December 31st.  He said they could get a new
roof at no cost to the taxpayers and without bonding.  He said he had been talking about that for two years.
Manager McPherson said they didn't have to spend the money they could authorize it.
Councilmember Conrad said if they could get some company in here or a shared agreement with the MUA
and they do the engineering which saved money they not only would save the costs of the new roofs they
would be saving on electric.  He again said the deadline was December 31 and at least 10% of the work
needed to be started.
Mayor Beck said they had a few meetings with the MUA and they were extremely successful with their
move towards solar.  He said the MUA hired their own engineer and because of his experience with it we
asked if he could help.  He said an interlocal agreement was needed in order for their continued help.
Mayor Beck said he looked behind the school to see if a solar field could be done there.  He said they were



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 8

moving forward.  
Deputy Mayor Lare suggested that Councilmember Conrad be included in the meetings with the MUA.
Deputy Mayor Lare motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The
ordinance was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, "no", Councilmember
Mazurek, "yes", Councilmember Douglass, "yes", Deputy Mayor Lare, "yes", Mayor Beck "yes".

Ord. #2010-09, Bond Ordinance Providing for Road and Drainage Improvements in and
 by theTownship of Lower, In The County of Cape May, New Jersey, Appropriating $445,00 Therefor
and Authorizing the Issuance of $415,000 Bonds or Notes of the Township to Finance Part of the
Cost Thereof, was presented for second reading and final adoption.
The Clerk announced the ordinance was posted and published according to law and copies were
available in the Clerk's Office.
Mayor Beck opened the meeting for comment on the ordinance.
No public comment.

Councilmember Conrad motioned to adopt the ordinance, seconded by Councilmember Douglass. The
ordinance was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, "yes", Councilmember 
Mazurek, "yes", Councilmember Douglass, "yes", Deputy Mayor Lare, "yes", Mayor Beck "yes".

Res. #2010-233, Resolution Approving Project Proposal Between Hatch Mott Macdonald and the
Township of Lower for Engineering Services Related to  Roofing Systems Replacement for Recreation Center

($62,400)
Councilmember Conrad said it was stupid to pay an engineer for a capital bond issue that wasn't
happening.
Councilmember Mazurek said he understood to hold off on the roof until they looked into putting solar
panels on the roof.
Councilmember Conrad said the Township needed to have solar and needed to move forward.
Councilmember Mazurek asked if they were looking to put solar panels on the recreation roof.
Mayor Beck said for all the buildings.
Councilmember Mazurek said they would vote but not engage Hatch Mott in that job until they settled the
solar panel on the roof issue.
Joe Winters questioned the amount for the engineer.  
Manager McPherson said it was for design, abestos investigation, bid award and construction design.
Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Conrad. The
resolution was adopted by the following roll call vote:  Councilmember Conrad, "yes", Councilmember
Mazurek,  "yes", Councilmember Douglass, "yes", Deputy Mayor Lare, "yes", Mayor Beck "yes".

                                                                Administrative Reports
June Report - Police
July Report - CFO, Police

Council Comments

Councilmember Conrad said they needed to look at the enforcement of bike helmets.  He thanked Eileen Kreis for
her work with movies in the park.
Deputy Mayor Lare said school was open dirve safe.



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 9

Mayor Beck said he had a few announcements there was a blood drive at the recreation center, a ribbon cutting
ceremony for the library on September 14th at 2pm, September 11th ceremony at sunset beach at 6pm and the
farmers market would be extended for the next two Saturdays.  He said there was a Run for the Fallen Soldiers and
it started at the Lighthouse at 6am and it was a 140 mile run. 

Public Comments

                                                                         Drainage Problem
Jim Calhoun of 116 Folsom Avenue said he had a drainage problem and who determined how the bond funds for
Ordinance #2010-09 would be used.  He asked what Council recommended for the problem and who should he
speak to.  
Mayor Beck said there were specific streets they would be working on.  He said as far as his problem Council relied
on the Manager and the Public Works Director to give their recommendations.
Mr. Calhoun felt lost in the shuffle and  it was a serious problem when the water came up to your knees.  He
said there was a drain there and it was pumped out before and now he was told the pumping station had ceased.
Mayor Beck said they were aware of the situation.
Manager McPherson said until the Cox Hall Creek issue was resolved it would be an problem.
Mr. Calhoun said they needed to know where they were with it.  He said it seemed that the pumping station wasn't 
working.
Manager McPherson said it was a County project and they were working on it.  She said they were getting permits 
it was a watershed area and it was a big project.
Mayor Beck said there was a whole area over there that had problems and it was part of the watershed.  He said it
wasn't something the Township was doing they did some things to help alleviate the problems.  He suggested calling
the County to see where things stood.
Marsha Kahn said they were getting flooded and there was no where for the water to go.  She said infrastucture was
taken out without anything going back in.
Gary Douglass the problem with the drains at Oxford and Folsom was it drained directly into Cox Hall Creek
Watershed.  He said until they did something with that area to reduce the level of the water it wouldn't drain the
basins.  He said it had nothing to do with the end result of the pumps at Cox Hall Creek, those pumps weren't in 
service but there were gravity feed line into the bay.
Mrs. Kahn said the problem didn't exist until they took the pumps out.
Gary Douglass said the drainage was adequate.
Councilmember Conrad said he recently received a map of what they would be doing there eventually.  He said they
werehaving the same issues in the Villas with Fishing Creek and it wasn't being discussed at the State or County
level.
Nancy Ruccier President of the CMC Property Owners Association said it was the people had a real problem and it
needed to be addressed.  

Res. #2010-241,     A Resolution Providing for a Meeting Not Open to the Pubic in Accordance with the
Provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 (Labor Relations - Grievances &
Personnel)
Councilmember  Conrad motioned to adopt the resolution, seconded by Councilmember Douglass.  The resolution
was adopted by the following roll call vote: Councilmember Conrad,  �yes �, Councilmember Mazurek,  �yes �,
Councilmember Douglass,  �yes �, Deputy Mayor Lare,  �yes �, Mayor Beck   �yes �.

Council returned to open session and there being no further comment, Councilmember Mazurek motioned to adjourn
the meeting, seconded by Councilmember Douglass the meeting unanimously adjourned by verbal  �ayes � at  10:35 
p.m.

__________________________ __________________________
           Mayor Township Clerk



Regular & Work Session Meeting Minutes - September 8, 2010

Page 10

Approved:  September 20, 2010


